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A

INTRODNCTION TO TALLAHATCHIE COUNTY HISTORY
Ne BY

JUDGE JOHN M. KUYKENDALL

Our children have been taught the histories of Europe, of the
United States and of Mississippi, but to this day they have not been taught
anything about the history of their own Tallahatchie County. Very few of our
children know the histories of their own familiesj they learned in school
who Leonidas was and where he fought, about the heroism of such men as Stonewall
Jackson and Robert E. Leej but they have learned little or nothing about "Grandpa®
who followed the historical herves, and little or nothing about the plain
heroes of humdrum every day life, the soldiers of pioneer days, who fought
and won the battles in changing a wilderness into what is now fallahatchie
County.

We spend money for monuments and memorials and neglect the memorials
we can bulld in hearts aad minds by teaching our children, through such a
county history as this, reverence for their forefathers. Why study the lives
of national heroes and negiect the lives of our local heroes who followed them?

We have here at home traditions of noble deeds and sacrificial service,
told to us by our fathers, who were told in turn by their fathers. Shall we let these
traditions into a history, and pass them on to our children that they, in
turn may have a record for transmitting the traditions to their children?

Surely, local history should be made a part of the work of every
high school} every child sho attends public school should be taught the
history of his own countye-of the parts played in its establishment, pro-
tection and development by the men and women who were his forebears. The
child should be taught to respect and cherish such history and such memories.
With such knowledge of it and its people, would not the child have a
much hizher regard for his county, a greater love for its past snd present
inhabitants, a higherlocal patriotism?

In the lower part of the new Capitol in Jackson the State has its
Hall of Fame. These exhibits are of great valuej they are highly appreciated
by thepeople of Mississippi. Why not have, in each county Court House, a County
Hall of Fame? We Tallahatchians, like inhabitants of other counties, take pride
inour local history. Our county men and women have made sacrifices-- their history,
yet unwritten, is full of prayerful service, of manhood and courage--kn the
founding, construction and reconstruction of our state and local governments,
Our men have fought in all our wars and our women have suffered in sacrificial
service with our mens Yet, where can the child find this record?

Instead of limiting this work of compiling county histories, its scope
should be broadened, to the end that to the minds and hearts of our people,
especiaily the children, should be brought the realization that this great nation
is made up of individual men and women who, in their humble stations here
at home, made it what it is. We should preserve their memory and make adequate
record of their deeds.

~~ Wnile such knowledge 1s one of the intagible things that make
life sweeter and grander, the tangible value of such county redords of local
fagilies should not be overlooked. The lawyer, in abstracting title, is met with
the problem of family history whenever he makes an abstract. He may find that
William Jones owned a certain tract of landy the next conveyence recorded may
be from Virginia Smith, Unless he hassome wey of knowing that William Jomes
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died intestate, leaving as sole heir his daughter, Virginia, who married John

Smith, and is the Virginia Smith making this second conveyance,

The lawyer is faced with a missing link in the claim of title.

Several years ago it was the custom of students in the University

of Mississippi, competing for prizes, to submit thesis on the history of

Reconstruction in the several counties of our state. Much valuable information

was in this way ecoummlatedj if this data could be assembled, printed and put

into use, esecially in the schools, it would prove of great value,

The walls of the Tallahatchie County Court House are so prepared

that upon them can be placed portraits and pictures of eminent county men.

As there are no local funds for carrying on this work it is necessary to

ask families of such men for these pictures. Attached to each picture

should be a statement anl record of man's part in local life and history.

There should be space for other pictures having historical valuey there should be

provision for taking care of reccrds of today's nsws which becowes tomorrow's

history. Already, in our court house offices, are hidden documents of such

historical value that they should be made mown to our peoples

Changing times bring sbout changing history. hose of us now in act.ve
life csn remember things told us by our fathers, who knew about first

settlers and early conditions. As we pass off life's stage, this contact with

the past will be lost forever, except as there recorded , im the history of

Tallahatchie County.
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SikesLeos,
HISTORY OF TAELAHATCHIE COUNTY

CHAPTER I: FORMATION

County Organized

The lands coxprising Tsllshstchie County were originally

included in the Chootsw nation snd were inhsbited by Choctaw

Indisns prior to 1830, when the Treaty of Dsncing Rebbit Creek

wes signed. Under the terxs of this treaty the Indisns grented

to the United Ststes 811 their lsnds east of the Mississippi

River. In exchange they were given s trsct of lsnd in the

Indisn Territory snd $20,000 per yesr for twenty years. In 1832

the Indisns were removed frox this region, snd in 1833, san

influx of white gebitlers began snd Tellshstchie County was

crested by sh Act of the Legislature, Decenber 23, 1833, (1)

The county was for the Tellshstchie River, an

Indisn nsxe nesning "Rock River] tusents of the Choctaw

lsnguage insist, however, thst the word mesns YGrooked River,".

while other suthorities disagree. (2)
 

(2) R.,L. Csnnon, Sumner, Miss,

x Publications of Wississippl Historicel
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Shspe, Sine,snd Boundsries

Tellshetchie County hes been described ss being "shaped

like 8 boot," ss the course of the Tsllshstchie River nskes 8

boot-toe, end the centrsl-southern boundsry line mskes the heel.

The rest of the county is rectsngulsr in shspe, its longest

pert running esst snd west, In the northesstern corner is s slight

rise of the line, separsting Quitmsn snd Yslobushs counties,

There sre 402,560 scres of land in Tsllshstchie, or

629 squsre niles,

The county, ss first crested, wss very large, including

portions of Leflore, Grensds, Juitmen, snd Coshors counties.

Its present boundsries are: Fsnols snd Quitaxsn on the north;

Leflore snd Grensds on the south; Sunflower, with Coshors, on

the west; Yslobushs snd Grensds on the esst.

Officers

The first officers chosen to direct the affsirs of the new

county were sworn into office on ilsrch 10 snd Msrch 11, 1834,

This list of officers, who met st the three forks of Tillstobs
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Creek snd were qualified into office by Coxmxissioner I. Tyson,

were : B.B., Wilson, clerk of police court snd probste court;

Green B. Goodwin, sheriff; Willisr Sutton, collector snd

sggsessor; Willism Berry, coroner; H.C, Davis, ranger; W.H. Wilkins,

tressurer; Willisn Fenning, A.S. Huxphrey, Saxuel Foster, Wslter

A, Msngux snd Joseph, Csrson, members of Board of follce. (1)
)

County Sests

At he bite the county wes established there were no

towns within its borders; immigrants ned chosen sites for hoxes

st sny desired point, snd at this date the population was

end consisted almost entirely of farmers, who, with

s view to the rich sgricultursl prospects the land offered, hsd

settled there to fark.

For nore then s yesr after the formation, courts were held

st the homes of settlers. "Phe first circuit court held its session

st Sersh Dosk's house, Exexinstion of records will lesd one to

>
think that this wes in Best Three of the county, os the lends

of the Dosks were in thet section, but no ded is found convey-
:

(1) Minutes TyenTR County,
¢

 

i
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ing lands to snd frorSsrsh,
= Ly, Tarp ckaR oF Hoar

4
v

/Gar Al Le Lerelhge Lots

' "The June, 1835, ree ting wes held st the 'house of John

Tyson, in the town of Decalb,' snd st this ree ting it wss vorderad

thet the Police snd Probste snd Circuit Court be holden at the

house of John Tyson.' The bosrd met in the town of Tillstobs om

the 14th dsy of 1835, when it was ordered 'that

circuit court be held in Watkin's storehouse, in the town of

Tillstoba, st the next December terx t.ereof,' snd this rxeeting

gd journed to meet on the 25th 'st th: hore of 7,M, Besl, on

Hubbsrd Creek, Section 12, Township Z4, Range 2 Zsst, for the

purpose Of exsnining the as to the prscticsebility of

locsting the county site, The board ret Jenusry tern, 1836, st

Tillstobe, when sn order was entered loosting the county site

gat "Dogwood lst" on lands of John H. Page snd Henderson,' but

on the nasrgin of this order sppesr these words: 'Csncelled by

the new Bosrd ss not scceptable,'’

"The Bosrd of Police, st its lLisrch, 1836, terx ordered

thet the county site be situsted in the town of Tillatobs, om
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north helf of esst hslf of northesst qusrter, Section 27, in

Township 25, Renge 2 esst; reciting thst sction wes tsken under

the Act of Legislature spproved Februsry i, 1836. This order, that

the courts be held 'in such house in ssid town of Tillatobs ss

ney be suitsble for the convenience until s courthouse be built,’

"At the May, 1836, term it wss ordered 'thst the Bosrd

of Police will let out the courthouse snd jsil on Mondsy, Jume

27, next, snd that s plsn would be exhibited on that dsy.' Then,

gt the June tern, 1836, it wss ordered ‘thst segled proposals

for the building of s courthouse snd Jsil be received and that

these plsns e¢sn be seen st Tillstobs and st Tuscohoma, snd

sivertisexents were ordered xsde.’ In Septenber, 1836, the house

of Jom H. Hill, in the town of Tillestoba, wss allotted for the

purpose of holding circuit court for the septenber, 1836, terx,

snd provision was nade for ssue,

"Tn Msrch, 1837, propossls for the locstion of s court-

hcuse snd county site were received snd voted on, Three mexbers

of the Bosrd voted in favor of the offer of John 5S. Topp. This

COXPILATION

Was lands where the courthouse now stsnds in the town of

Cherleston, This order locates the county site, snd st this terx

*it wa: ordered, that the Probste Court, the Police Court snd

Circuit Court, sfter the first day of June, next, shall be held

in the new town of Chsrleston,'

"IfMay, 1837, the order locating the county site st

Tillstobs wes set sside. In Msy, 1838, an election was ordered

to be held in the county to fix the county site. The minutes of

the June, 1838, neeting show thst this election wes held on the

1st snd 2nd dsys of June, 1838, with the following result:

Charleston, 148; Gersult, 104; Dogwood Flat, 8. 30 the most

eligible point nesrest the center of the county, Charleston,

becane the county site by the nsjority vote of the people. An

order was entered declaring it such. This order wss confirmed

end definite locstion of the county site made July terx, 1838." (1)

It is generslly believed that immigrsnts frox South

Csrolins were instrurentsl in nsxing the new county sest becsuse
:

HAP: 3.
 

(1) Article Judge J.M. Kuykendsll, Cherleston, Miss,lls Police Bosrd Record, jock 7,1: 8,18, ,, ,

2, 1, 4 , 0, ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ 8, + » 83. = prs z= 2 Zz -
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thet village wes given the same title ss the historic South

Cerolins town = CHARLESTON. L¥

i
rleston was

In 18384 the site of the present town of Chs

of
deeded to allen Jenkins by Greenwood Leflore for the sux

$3,500, Leflore received this land Dy the Treaty of Dsncing53,500.

£ :
a £

Rebbit Creek, Section Twenty-six, Township Twenty-five, Reng

and others ==
two, Bast, wes sold by Jenkins to Topp, Davidson,

ch
forning @ Township Coxpany — the same yesr for $12,000, of whi

’ N
W J

by J.G. Rayburn for
the court to the highest bidder,snd bought by

v 1 nL

$1,300, The next year it was divided into town lots, Willis
3X ) ®

G. Sheley being probste clerk st that time.

The first courts at Chsrleston were held in sn old log

house near the site of the present courthouse, 3 1ittle to on

side of the square, leaving roo for the building which wes

afterward erected in the exact center of the square.

When court was in session the grand jury sat in 8 shedroox

 

—ifsroh-23;-198%% cart
() ChanceryCourt Reeords,Cherleaton, Mi
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8% one end of the courthouse; when the Jury retired to find

8 verdict they were sent out of the house snd usually found

en old log in s secluded spot to get it up. (1)

In 1845, so brick courthouse wes erected, which was used

until 1900, when the present building wes built:all the ussble

naterisl in the old one being used in the construction of the

new, (2)

In June, 1835, the police court pessed sn order cslling for

sésled bids for the bgilding of s Joil; smd Joe 4 ,Young wes sppoint-

sh
ed 8s connittee of one to visit Coffeville, take messure of Jail,

end draft plens for its reproduction. But, notwithstanding this

ésrly scty/snd many other often repeated efforts, the drafting of

plans to duplicste the Csrrollton Jail, the selection of the

La

Ahlocation and the letting of contrscts, Tsllshatchie County never+
PA

r= 8 Jall until 1855, just twenty-five yesrs after the first

order for thst csuse. During the time, the county bésrded its

prisoners with Yslobushs County, frox whence they were escorted to

J.S. Bailey, Herald, Ohsrleston, liisa., Oot.
25 9 1900.

(2) The Mississippi Sun, Charleston, Miss., July 4, 1933.
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. Charleston for trisl or execution, 8s the csse might be, by the

sheriff snd his deputies; grininsls were often carried twenty-five

niles through the country.

In 1855 the county built s brick jsil, lined with hesvy
and 1.50rd

but it wes set on Rive by Degro prisoners in 1882, agd

In 1883 Jjeil wes built snd fitted with modern

conveniences (this is not the jail now in use in Tellshstchie

County). (1)

On the lot occupied by the telephone office at Charleston,

now owned by Dr. Hesrrison, stood en old hotel msde of hsend- hewn

poplar logs. At what date this building wss erected, or oy whok,

is not knowng but it was one of the old landmarks until it wss

torm down thirty-two yesrs sgo. (2)

The newspsper office of the "Tsllshstchisn®, “edited by F.W.
3

Merrin, occupied 2 lot on the north side of the public squsre/

(fee Press). (3)

One of Tsllshstchie' S old-time puysisisms,DT C8lhoun,

(3) The Miss 188 1ppi Sun, Charleston, Miss., July 4, 1933,
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“practiced redicine for forty yesrs in the county snd who made 8

celebrated record in the War between the Ste tes, was erong the

pioneers. He wes born in Abbeville District, South Csrolins,in 1832,

coming to Tsllshatohie snd settlisg neer Cherleston when s small

boyy (See Chopber #£,Heslth). (1)

Dr. Athersll Bell, who was probsbly the first physicsin

ed Mes

in Chesrleston, born in Virginis in 1811,came to Chsrleston in
/

18364 (gee Ghopber kX, Health). (2)

The lot on which the Dr, Bsrdwell home now stands Wass once the

locstionh of the home of Dr. C.J.F. Meriwe ther, snother old-tine

rhysicisn of mole of the present editor of the

Fung fee 3X, Health),

The Bsiley sncestral home, which is the oldest lsndmark in

the town of Chsrleston, stends on the northeast cormer of court

square. Until recently it wes occupied by the late Belle

Bailey, grendfdsughter of Colonel Jakes S, Bailey, and dsughter

of Jexes Spencer Bailey, noted jurist.

1 Vrs, T.H, Calhoun, Grensda, Miss.

(2) Caroline Rayburn Eliott
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One of the first lswyers to prsctice at Chsrleston wss

AW. povis, 8 Virginisn; this wes in the 1840's, J.P. Foree,

a Kenbusklan, 8lso practiced law here during this period. {1)

Chsrleston hss produced nsny brillisnt nexbers of the bsr

who hsve distinguished thenselves both st home snd sbrosd.

Colonel Fitzgerald, Ceptsin J.S. Eskridge, Willisx Msrshsll,

A

JoE, Eskridge, M.W, Byers, E.M. Caperton, all were sctively in this

profession before the Wer between the Stetes/ (See Ghaptes19,

IheBar).

During the yesrs of growth Cherleston hss progressed

sxazingly, although sdversities hsve been one of the ns jor

calsnities was the tion by fire of the Lsnb,Fish Luxber

Coxpsny. In this disgstrous fire not only was nxill snd 4 4

yard destroyed, but sll of "Mill Town ®, vhs it wes cslled loecslly,

which included stores, drug store, xsny rows of houses, snd the

modernsixty-five-roon Lefisco Hotel,

Modern Charleston, with 8 population of 4200boasts eleven

COMPILATION

grocery stores, one wholessle grocery, seven dry goods stores,y

two five-snd-ten's, ‘ne newspsper, six service stations, five

beauty shops, three barber shops, six safes, three drug stores,

one retail lumber
i >

coxpsny, two shoe repair Shops,billisrd rarlor,
at
, theatre, three pressing shops, two undertaking parlors, two

Stations, ice sng storsge plant, gins, and

ills,

By en Act of the Legislatue,of 1902, Tellshstchie wss

ween the

towns of Sunrez and ebb, SUMNER wss chosen ss the sest of the

second district,

Suxner is locsted in the western psrt of the county snd ig

8 typical Delts town, depending upon cottoy for its nsgine

tenance, The lsrge and prosperous plsntstions Surrounding it, the’

wesltBy owners of and the plantstion gins, constitute Suxner 
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The town wes nsmed in honor of J.B. Sumner, sn early citizen

who came from Alsbsxe snd settled there im 1872and gave the

site for the town, (1) Since thet dete, the Sumner femily hes

played s Yeeding role in the town's upbuilding snd growth,

Others who have figured prozinently/ snd helred nske

history for the town areJ T.C. Buford, philsnthropist, merchsnt,

planter, bankerend extensive lsndowner, the Jennings fonily, = ccc

phe
Allitechell snd Flsutt fsmilies,

BEsrly Settlements snd Settlers

Presbyterisn fhurch history records show that ss esrly ss

1820/ ROBERT BELL snd JOHN C. SMITH were sent ss nissionsries to

the Indisns of this territory, snd historicsl documents in the

archives st Jesckson mention the ssne facts. (2) SAMUEL FOSTER

wes the only white person found in whst is now Tsllshstchie County

when the settlers arrived/ (See Che
l,l Ai

§ of fe”

PHARSALIA wss the nsme of the first town in Tsllshstohie

oud derived its nsesme frox the chief city in the District

of Phersslis, in southern Thessaly. It wes locsted in the hill

(1) 1rs. Prank Suxner, Suxner, MlL188,

(2) Rev. Lee JecksonBf Tallshs tohie | heli, Mie,  
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saction, on the south bsnk of the Yocons River, in the north-

egstern psrt of the county ,snd wes settled in 1833,

lesr here wss the pioneer fsrr home of Colonel Jsnes

Bailey, who was born in Kentucky in 1790 and csme to Tsllshstchie

County on horsebsck., #7ith hin Csptasin Ssnuel Caruthers snd

Csptein Charles Bowen, former residents of Hickmsn County,

“esses. These three men, weslthy farmers, brought w»ith theg msny

16 gro slavesand opened plentetions.

Other settlers nesr this point were the lietcslfs, Ssxael

Foster, Curtis Mstthews, Sxiley Csrrothers,snd B,F, Gibson;

811 fsrrers who had filed on government lsnds in this fertile

velley. Soxe of our oldest fsxilies csxe from Phsrsslis -- the

grandpsrents of our present circuit judge, John M. Kuykendall,

being snxong then.

About one snd sg hslf niles north of where the derrick

of the proposed Charleston oil well recently stood, is the

location of whet is now known ss the Bsiley greve=yerdJ which,

go fer as sveilable records show, is the oldest burying-grcund 


